
Agenda for a meeting of the Children's Services 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to be held on 
Tuesday, 12 April 2016 at 4.30 pm in Committee Room 1 
- City Hall, Bradford

Members of the Committee – Councillors
CONSERVATIVE LABOUR LIBERAL 

DEMOCRAT
BRADFORD 
INDEPENDENT 
GROUP

Sykes
M Pollard

Engel
Peart
Shaheen
Tait
Thirkill

Sunderland Khan

Alternates:

VOTING CO-OPTED MEMBERS:
Sidiq Ali Parent Governor Representative
Claire Parr Church Representative (RC)
Joyce Simpson Church Representative (CE)
Gull Hussain Parent Governor Representative

NON VOTING CO-OPTED MEMBERS
Irene Docherty Teachers Special School Representative
Kerr Kennedy Voluntary Sector Representative
Stephen Pickles Teachers Primary Schools Representative
Tom Bright Teachers Secondary School Representative
Tina Wildy Health Representative

Notes:
 This agenda can be made available in Braille, large print on request by contacting the Agenda contact 

shown below.
 The taking of photographs, filming and sound recording of the meeting is allowed except if Councillors 

vote to exclude the public to discuss confidential matters covered by Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972. Recording activity should be respectful to the conduct of the meeting and 
behaviour that disrupts the meeting (such as oral commentary) will not be permitted. Anyone attending 
the meeting who wishes to record or film the meeting's proceedings is advised to liaise with the Agenda 
Contact who will provide guidance and ensure that any necessary arrangements are in place. Those 
present who are invited to make spoken contributions to the meeting should be aware that they may be 
filmed or sound recorded.

If any further information is required about any item on this agenda, please contact the officer named at the 
foot of that agenda item.

From: To:
City Solicitor
Agenda Contact: Fatima Butt / Jill Bell
Phone: 01274 432227/434580
E-Mail: fatima.butt@bradford.gov.uk / jill.bell@bradford.gov.uk

CONSERVATIVE LABOUR LIBERAL 
DEMOCRAT

BRADFORD 
INDEPENDENT 
GROUP

Carmody
Rickard

Akhtar
Bacon
Abid Hussain
Lee

N Pollard Collector

Public Document Pack



A. PROCEDURAL ITEMS

1.  ALTERNATE MEMBERS  (Standing Order 34)

The City Solicitor will report the names of alternate Members who are 
attending the meeting in place of appointed Members.  

2.  DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

(Members Code of Conduct - Part 4A of the Constitution)

To receive disclosures of interests from members and co-opted 
members on matters to be considered at the meeting. The disclosure 
must include the nature of the interest.

An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it becomes 
apparent to the member during the meeting.

Notes:

(1) Members may remain in the meeting and take part fully in 
discussion and voting unless the interest is a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or an interest which the Member feels would 
call into question their compliance with the wider principles set 
out in the Code of Conduct.  Disclosable pecuniary interests 
relate to the Member concerned or their spouse/partner.

(2) Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months 
must not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget 
calculations, and must disclose at the meeting that this 
restriction applies to them.  A failure to comply with these 
requirements is a criminal offence under section 106 of the 
Local Government Finance Act 1992.  

(3) Members are also welcome to disclose interests which are not 
disclosable pecuniary interests but which they consider should 
be made in the interest of clarity.

(4) Officers must disclose interests in accordance with Council 
Standing Order 44.

3.  INSPECTION OF REPORTS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS

(Access to Information Procedure Rules – Part 3B of the Constitution)

Reports and background papers for agenda items may be inspected by 
contacting the person shown after each agenda item.  Certain reports 
and background papers may be restricted.  



Any request to remove the restriction on a report or background paper 
should be made to the relevant Strategic Director or Assistant Director 
whose name is shown on the front page of the report.  

If that request is refused, there is a right of appeal to this meeting.  

Please contact the officer shown below in advance of the meeting if 
you wish to appeal.  

(Fatima Butt - 01274 432227)

4.  REFERRALS TO THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

The following referrals have been made to this Committee up to and 
including the date of publication of this agenda.

The Committee is asked to note the referrals listed above and decide 
how it wishes to proceed, for example by incorporating the item into the 
work programme, requesting that it be subject to more detailed 
examination, or refer it to an appropriate Working Group/Committee.

B. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY ACTIVITIES

5.  DELIVERING A NEW YOUTH OFFER FOR BRADFORD DISTRICT

The report of the Strategic Director – Environment and Sport 
(Document “BH”) proposes a way forward for establishing a new 
Youth Offer for the Bradford District in response to the 
recommendations made in the Youth Offer Review report produced in 
November 2014. 

Recommended -

(1) That the work undertaken by the Youth Offer Working 
Group as detailed in Appendix A of Document “BH”be 
welcomed.

(2) That the Committee considers and comments on the 
proposals and recommendations made by the Youth Offer 
Working Group in Appendix A to Document “BH”.

(Jonathan Hayes – 01274 431781)

1 - 20

6.  SCHOOL CAPITAL FUNDING ANNOUNCEMENT AND SCHOOL 
EXPANSION PROGRAMME 2016-2017

The report of the Director of Children’s Services (Document “BI”) 
details the recent school funding announcements from the Education 

21 - 26



Funding Agency (EFA) and also details the school expansion projects 
the Authority is currently undertaking.

Recommended -

That the Committee notes Document “BI”.

(Terry Davis – 01274 437170)

7.  EQUALITY ACTION PLAN PROGRESS REPORT

This report of the Deputy Director of Education, Employment and Skills 
(Document “BJ”) provides an annual progress update on the 
Council’s Equality Action Plan (published in 2013), as the Council’s 
means of meeting its statutory duties.

Recommended –

That the Committee considers what it would like to put in the work 
programme for the next municipal year on the Equality Action 
Plan.

(Alina Khan – 01274 439384)

27 - 32

8.  SCRUTINY OF HOME SCHOOLING - DRAFT TERMS OF 
REFERENCE

On 22 March 2016 Council resolved amongst other things:

To:

(1) Continue to make safeguarding of every child in the District a 
priority. 

(2) Ask that the Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee to ensure that a comprehensive and robust 
review of the Council’s approach to elective home 
education is carried out over the next six months in which 
the safeguarding of children is central.

(3) Request the Chief Executive to write to the Secretary of State 
for Education expressing support for a review of national policy on 
elective home education which should include support for local 
authorities and partner agencies in cases where access to children is 
refused so that they can satisfy themselves that all children’s education 
and welfare needs are being met.    



In addressing the above resolution from Council, the Committee 
will be asked to consider the draft Terms of Reference for the 
proposed scrutiny review of Home Schooling (Document “BK”) to 
follow.

(Licia Woodhead – 01274 432119)

THIS AGENDA AND ACCOMPANYING DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN PRODUCED, WHEREVER POSSIBLE, ON RECYCLED PAPER



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 

Report of the Strategic Director – Environment and 
Sport to the meeting of Children’s Services Overview 
& Scrutiny Committee to be held on 12 April 2016 
 
 

           BH 
Subject:   
 
Delivering a new Youth Offer for Bradford District 
 
 

Summary statement: 
 
This report proposes a way forward for establishing a new Youth Offer for the Bradford 
District in response to the recommendations made in the Youth Offer Review report 
produced in November 2014.  

 
 
 
 
 

Steve Hartley 
Strategic Director – Environment and 
Sport 

Portfolio:   
Neighbourhoods and Community Safety 

Report Contact: Jonathan Hayes 
Keighley Area Co-ordinator  
Phone: 01535 618008 
E-mail: jonathan.hayes@bradford.gov.uk 
and Heather Wilson   
Commissioner (Youth Provisions) 
Phone: 01274 431781 
Email: heather.wilson@bradford.gov.uk 

Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
Children’s Services 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 5/



  

1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report proposes a way forward for establishing a new Youth Offer for the 

Bradford District in response to the recommendations made in the Youth Offer 
Review report produced in November 2014. 

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Interim Assistant Director – Neighbourhood and Customer Services 

presented a report to the meeting of the Children’s Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held on 22 October 2015 which gave an update on the work 
undertaken by the Council’s Youth Service across the Bradford District since the 
service was transferred to Neighbourhood and Customer Services on 6 July 
2014. 

 
2.2 At that meeting the Committee resolved: 

“That the report be welcomed and a progress report be presented to the 
Committee in early Spring 2016 on the Action Plan, following the Youth 
Offer Review (with particular reference to how the service was 
supporting young people in their learning potential).” 

 
2.3 In June 2015 the Youth Offer Working Group was formed following the 

independent Youth Offer Review and reports and recommendations that were 
taken to the Council’s Executive in March 2015. The aim of the Youth Offer 
Working Group is to bring people together from across the youth sector to 
explore the review findings, and develop closer working arrangements in order 
to enable recommendations from these reports to become reality. The Youth 
Offer Working Group has representatives from the voluntary sector, the council, 
the police, community and faith sectors and feeds into the Core Strategic Group 
of the Young Lives Bradford Network and Bradford Council’s Active Citizenship 
New Deal Partnership.  

 
2.4 Appendix A to this report outlines the summary of discussions in relation to what 

are considered to be key elements of the Bradford Youth Offer, what this looks 
like now and where the opportunities are to make changes. It has used the 
findings of the review to formulate the recommendations in light of a changing 
environment in which youth work operates and the pressures on public sector 
funding.   

 
2.5 Appendix A is intended to support the Council’s budget considerations in relation 

to Youth Work and its future in the District. It recognises the need to do things 
differently and to increase the sharing of expertise and resources across the 
whole youth sector. 

 
2.6 In terms of the support that the Council’s Youth Service gives to young people to 

support their learning potential, it does this in a number of ways: 
i) Accreditation – youth workers work with over 600 young people each year 

to help them achieve a number of accredited outcomes at various levels, 
these include the Youth Service Local Award, the Lord Mayor’s Award, and 
ASDAN qualifications which all require them to demonstrate basic core skills 
in developing self-esteem, working with others and contributing to their 
community. Many of these young people gain no or very little formal 
qualifications from school. 

ii) Duke of Edinburgh Award (DofE) - is a national award that gives young 
people an opportunity to accredit the activities they do in their leisure time. 

Page 2



  

Known as a tough award to complete, it is well respected in both education 
and employment (no. 1 extracurricular activity looked for by employers, 
Independent United Learning Trust research) for the skills the award teaches 
and the effort the young people have to put in to complete it. The Bradford 
Youth Service DofE team supported 206 young people in 2014-15 to 
complete their Awards. 

iii) Targeted support – youth workers work with young people in the school 
setting according to the needs of young people themselves. For example,  
TICTAC sessions provide one-to-one support for identified students who 
need social or emotional support. Workers commonly address issues such as 
bullying, mental health, and family breakdown. 

iv) Informal learning – in schools – youth workers deliver workshops to groups 
of young people to support the Youth Service curriculum. Subjects covered 
include: citizenship, mental and physical health, healthy relationships and 
staying safe 

- open access provision – this involves youth workers in 
delivering the Youth Service curriculum based around fun, 
engaging activities in a community setting which challenge 
young people and enable their personal and social 
development and positive contribution to the wider  
community. 

v) Formalised partnerships with education providers – sometimes youth 
workers will deliver targeted work with schools and the District-PRU under a 
more formalised agreement which enables the most vulnerable young people 
to re-integrate back into a full school timetable. Individual youth workers will 
provide specific one-to-one support for the young person often around issues 
such as: anger management, emotional literacy, and conflict resolution. 

vi) Communities of Interest – for example LGBT young people, are supported 
through Youth Service intervention which often enables the support given to 
them in school to be linked with their support in the community.  

vii) Family Support Panels – youth workers work with other agencies to provide 
information and understanding of a young person’s barriers to attendance 
and participation in agreed education welfare plans. 

viii) Voluntary relationships – effective youth work relies on establishing 
voluntary relationships with young people which means that the Youth 
Service is often best placed to work with young people where relationships 
with other statutory services have broken down. Youth Workers work with 
staff such as social workers and education welfare officers to build upon the 
relationship they have with the young person to help the statutory agency to 
build trust and re-establish a constructive working relationship with that 
young person. 

 
 

3. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 On 25 February 2016 Bradford Council approved a budget which included 

proposals in relation to the Youth Service to make savings by: reducing the 
numbers of full-time and part-time youth workers, moving from a model of 
providing Information, Advice and Guidance through two Information Shops to a 
District-wide Information service, reducing the amounts available to Area 
Committees for allocation to activities and Youth Opportunity Fund grants, 
removing the budget for Youth Service vehicles and reducing Youth Service 
Finance administration. 

 

Page 3



  

3.2 The outcome of these savings over the next two years will mean that the 
capacity of the Youth Service to support the Youth Offer will be reduced which 
heightens the need to do things differently and to increase the sharing of 
expertise and resources across the whole youth sector. 

 
 

4. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 
 
4.1 As part of the Budget decisions taken by the Council for the financial years 2016 

-18 the Youth Service budget needs to deliver savings of £750,000.  
 
4.2 This is set in the context of reduced financial resources for all sectors delivering 

youth work, including the voluntary and faith sectors. 
 
 
5.        RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
 
5.1 The Youth Offer Working Group is chaired by the Commissioner (Youth 

Provisions) and includes the Area Co-ordinator with lead responsibility for the 
Youth Service. 

 

6. LEGAL APPRAISAL 
 

6.1 The Council has a responsibility to co-ordinate and offer support for the Health 
and Well Being of Young People set down in Statutory Guidance issued in 2012. 
The duty is to secure equality of access for all young people to the positive, 
preventative and early help they need to improve their well-being. This includes 
youth work and other services and activities that:  

• Connect young people with communities so they contribute to society 
including through volunteering and ensure they have a voice in decisions 
affecting them 

• Offer young people opportunities in safe environments so they develop a 
sense of belonging, socialise safely with their peers, enjoy social mixing, 
experience time with older people and develop relationships with adults they 
trust 

• Support the personal and social development of young people to build 
capabilities needed for learning, work and the transition to adulthood  

• Improve young people’s physical and mental health and emotional well-being;  

• Help those at risk of dropping out of learning or not achieving their full 
potential to engage and attain in education or training; and  

• Raise young people’s aspirations, build resilience and informs their decisions 
– particularly to address risky behaviours  

 
7. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 

The Youth Service as part of the Council’s commitment to the District has a 
responsibility to ensure that the service is accessible to all young people and 
that participation in the service reflects this approach.  

            
7.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 

The Youth Service delivery enables local initiatives to be supported, encouraging 
groups and individuals to undertake activities that improve the social, economic 
and environmental well being of their communities. 

 
Page 4



  

7.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 
There are no Greenhouse gas emissions impacts arising from this report.  

 
7.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

A number of youth projects are either directly or indirectly concerned with 
improving community safety within local communities. The increased 
involvement of young people in local decision making has the potential to 
improve community safety. The youth sector plays a key role in ensuring that 
young people’s voices are heard.  

 
7.5 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 

There are no direct Human Rights implications arising from the 
recommendations below. 

 
7.6 TRADE UNION 

There are no implications for Trade Unions arising from this report. 
 
8. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 

None. 
 
9. OPTIONS 
 
9.1 That the Overview and Scrutiny Committee adopts the recommendations outlined 

in this report. 
 

9.2 That the Overview and Scrutiny Committee adopts the recommendations outlined 
in this report, with amendments. 

 
9.3 That the Overview and Scrutiny Committee decides not to accept the 

recommendations outlined in this report 
 

10. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10.1 That the work undertaken by the Youth Offer Working Group as detailed in 

Appendix A of this report be welcomed. 
 

10.2 That the Committee considers and comments on the proposals and 
recommendations made by the Youth Offer Working Group in Appendix A. 

 
 
11.  APPENDICES 
 
11.1 Appendix A: Delivering a new Youth Offer for Bradford District 
   

12. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
12.1 Bradford Council Youth Service, Document ‘W’, Children’s Services Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee, 22 October 2015. 
 
12.2 Bradford Youth Offer Review, Document ‘BQ’, Council Executive, 10 March 

2015 

Page 5



  

Appendix A 

 

 

 

Delivering a new 
Youth Offer for 

Bradford District 
Proposed by the Youth Offer Working Group 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 6



  

 

Introduction  
This document proposes a way forward for establishing a new Youth Offer for the 
Bradford District in response to the recommendations made in the Youth Offer 
Review report of November 2014. 

The Youth Offer Working Group was formed following the independent Youth Offer 
Review and reports and recommendations that were taken to the Councils Executive 
in March 2015. The aim of the Youth Offer Working Group was to bring people 
together from across the youth sector to explore the review findings, and develop 
closer working arrangements in order to enable recommendations from these reports 
to become reality. The Youth Offer Working Group has representatives from the 
voluntary sector, the council, the police, community and faith sectors and feeds into 
the Core Strategic Group of the Young Lives Bradford Network and Bradford 
Council’s Active Citizenship New Deal Partnership.  

This document outlines the summary of discussions in relation to what are 
considered to be key elements of the Bradford Youth Offer, what this looks like now 
and where the opportunities are to make changes. It has used the findings of the 
review to formulate the recommendations in light of a changing environment in which 
youth work operates and of the pressures on public sector funding.   

This document is intended to support the budget considerations in relation to Youth 
Work and its future in the District. It recognises the need to do things differently and 
to increase the sharing of expertise and resources across the whole youth sector. 

What is the Youth Offer? 
The Secretary of State for Education provides guidance to local authorities on 
services and activities to improve young people’s well being. This guidance outlines 
the expectations in relation to young people’s equality of access to a range of 
positive, preventative and early help services and activities that improve young 
people’s well being. We call this the Youth Offer, recognising that with the right 
supportive relationships, strong ambitions and good opportunities all young people 
can realise their potential and be positive and active members of society. Bradford’s 
Youth Offer aims to ensure a range of activities and services that take place in safe 
spaces, where young people can develop a sense of belonging, socialise with their 
peers, enjoy social mixing, spending time with other people and develop 
relationships with adults they can trust. The Group felt that in the Bradford Youth 
Offer it is important to include a range of services that support personal and social 
development for young people, raise aspirations and build resilience. 

Who delivers the Youth Offer? 
In Bradford the youth offer is delivered by a range of providers including Bradford 
Council, health, schools, voluntary sector, informal community groups, housing 
associations, faith groups, uniformed organisations, the police and private sector 
organisations.  

Why a new offer? 
There are a number of reasons why there needs to be a new youth offer 

• The Youth Offer Review The Council conducted a review into the Youth 
Offer. It recognised strengths of the existing offer, but also recognised that 
there is a need for change. This document is part of the progress of moving 
this offer on.  

Page 7



  

• The severity of the cuts Bradford is facing in the public and voluntary 
sectors means that the current levels of funding for all services and activities 
need to be reviewed.  

 

• Bradford’s New Deal initiative, a response to the austerity measures this 

recognises that there is a need to do things very differently in the future which 

will involve increased partnership working and communities taking a more 

active lead. The Youth Offer therefore needs to reflect the New Deal 

principles:  

• Principle 1: Enabling Community Leadership – the District should have 

a culture and systems of governance which are vibrant, inclusive and 

democratic.  

• Principle 2: Integrated Local State – the Council and other public bodies 

which constitute the local state will integrate planning and delivery so that 

shared priorities, based on wellbeing outcomes, drive decision making, joint 

commissioning, resource allocation and joined up services and relationships 

with citizens and service users. 

• Principle 3: Reducing Demand, Changing Expectations and Behaviour – 

Policies and strategies will be focused on actively managing, and where 

possible, reducing demand for services in order to manage costs within 

reducing resources and to eliminate waste.  

• Principle 4: Investing in Prevention and Early Intervention – A critical 

approach to managing demand in ways which reduce cost, eliminate waste 

and develop more positive, co-productive behaviours is through shifting 

strategies upstream towards preventing costly problems occurring in the first 

place, or at least intervening in problems before they become chronic and 

intractable. 

• Principle 5:  Reducing Inequalities - All policies and strategies will aim to 

reduce the inequalities in income, health, education and other aspects of 

wellbeing which have affected and excluded significant parts of the population 

and which limit opportunity and life chances.  

• Principle 6: Subsidiarity: decision-making is devolved to the lowest 

appropriate level – so that strategies and services can be tailored to meet 

the needs of specific individuals, families and communities.  

• Principle 7: Productivity and Value for Money – policies and strategies 

will be able to demonstrate a commitment to delivering improved 

outcomes or reduced social costs in ways which minimise financial cost 

and waste and maximise economic efficiency and societal impact.  

• Social media and new technology are already changing how young 
people access information and support. The youth offer needs to reflect 
that.  

This paper explores some options for delivering the new youth offer. One thing is 
clear, however, is that “no change” is not a viable or sustainable option.  

Foundations of a new Youth Offer 
The Youth Offer review and subsequent council decisions recognise the need for 
greater strategic collaboration. The Youth Offer Working Group proposes that the 

Page 8



  

key foundations to a successful youth offer for Bradford District are:  

• Variety of experience: Central to the offer will be the concept of ensuring 
that there is a variety of experience on offer. This includes variety of provider, 
variety of setting and variety of activities offered in local neighbourhoods. 

• Safeguarding: All provision irrespective of size and sector (public, private 
and voluntary) should meet minimum safeguarding standards as outlined by 
the Bradford Safeguarding Children’s Board and be able to evidence this.  

• Ensuring quality across all provision: Currently it is unclear what “good” 
looks like. Equally different provisions use different measures to demonstrate 
their work. Provision should use the same outcomes and measurement. A 
‘kite mark’ should be developed which sets out from a young person’s view, 
what good provision looks like and allows organisations to assess their 
strengths and weaknesses. It is, however, vital that any expectations are 
proportionate and reasonable. With the exception of meeting minimum 
safeguarding standards, expectations on a very small informal group 
operating a couple of hours a week should be different to expectations on 
large well established organisation working with vulnerable groups.  

• Young person led: Young people should be central to the planning, delivery 
and decision making. This is explored more within the sections on youth voice 
and active citizenship. Arrangements should be in place to enable young 
people to be actively involved in inspections on the quality and accessibility of 
provisions.   

• Community cohesion: Opportunities to interact with young people from 
different backgrounds are vital and contribute to building community cohesion. 
Organisations would be encouraged to create opportunities to link up with 
other groups of young people  

• Inclusion: It is vital that barriers to participation are overcome. This has two 
aspects:  

o Individual support to young people to help them overcome barriers and 
be able to access open access provision. 

o Organisational development to help organisations and staff adapt their 
services and activities to be genuinely inclusive – this support includes 
access to resources and training and will help organisations working 
towards the kite mark, and to benchmark approaches and performance 
to identify how we might improve impact and cost effectiveness.  

• Supporting health and wellbeing:  
Activity under the youth offer contributes significantly to developing young 
people’s health and wellbeing. Its contribution to improving the mental health 
and emotional wellbeing of young people is particularly important. The Group 
is working on strategic alignment with work to review CAMHS and mental 
health provision.  

• Learning Opportunities 
Activities should enable young people’s learning and achievements to be 
recognised and learning outcomes to be achieved. This will be through a 
diverse range of formal and informal methods, including awards and 
accreditation. Young people should be supported to recognise and celebrate 
their achievements.  

• Pathways to Opportunities  
All activities should be seen as part of a continuum and young people should 
be encouraged to take ownership of their own pathway and to explore the 
variety of opportunities and settings. Underpinning this will be: 

o Ways to help young people find out what is available 

Page 9



  

o Support to young people to access and explore the opportunities 
available 

o Organisations, staff and volunteers taking active steps to understand 
the other provision available and promote it.  

• Cross-sector working  
Greater partnership across the whole of the youth sector and greater 
collaboration is a key tenet of the youth offer and new deal. Central to this is 
an increase in cross-sector working. There are two strands to ensure this is 
achieved:  

o An increased level of face to face contact between young people who 
are supported by different providers – a greater range of cross-sector 
young people’s activities that build on and increase partnership 
working.  

o Greater level of strategic co-operation, including, co-design, joint 
commissioning, joint delivery and embracing new ways of working  

• Capacity building:  

This would seek to: 

o Maximise the resources across the district and avoid duplication: 
sharing equipment, resources, staffing 

o Build on partnership working 
o Opportunities to maximise interaction and sharing 
o Capacity building support should be focussed around enabling 

organisations to work towards achieving the kite mark.   

• Commissioning Processes: Commissioning for services to children and 
young people should: 

o be aligned and appropriate to the youth offer, referencing the key 
principles outlined including supporting information advice and 
guidance, developing young people’s voice and engagement and 
promoting active citizenship.  

o Use appropriate methodologies to secure appropriate services, 
including grant funding, alliance commissioning: selection of methods 
should depend on the service and activity being purchased. 

o Be designed to maximise external funding  

 

Elements of the Youth Offer 
The Working Group is proposing five elements to an improved Youth Offer. These 
are described in more detail below:   

1. Information and advice 
 

2. Voice and influence 
 

3. Open access  
 

4. Targeted provision 
 

5. Active citizens and young people’s contribution to community life 

 

Page 10



  

1. Information Advice and Guidance (IAG) 
This includes advice on education, skills, health and emotional wellbeing. It 
encompasses both formal provision and informal provision.  

What does it look like now? 

• Two Info Shops (Bradford and Keighley). These offer a service for those young 
people who don’t access “youth clubs” or other provisions. Numbers accessing 
the Information Shops have reduced significantly in recent years.   

• Lots of Informal IAG by Youth Workers, professionals, volunteers within other 
provision.  There is variability in terms of how well connected this is with other 
provision and how the quality of this is ensured.  

• Schools provide IAG but young people who don’t fit in to mainstream schools 
have less access to IAG.  

• Sometimes the offer is too “formal” 

• Better use of social media and the internet would offer young people access to a 
wider range of services 

 

What do we know from young people? 

• Young people are voting with their feet and using the Information Shops less than 
previously. Combined visitor numbers for both Shops have gone down from 
30,213 in 2010-11, to 15,337 in 2014-15. 

• Increasingly young people are using social media and IT to access and seek 
Information, Advice and Guidance. 

• The youth offer should focus on providing support and activities that make a 
difference to young people’s lives and not simply provide access to leisure 
activities (Youth Offer Review) 

• The youth offer should focus more on providing support for young people to 
develop their learning potential than current provision does. (Youth Offer Review) 

• There should be better signposting and advertisement of provision, particularly 
around the areas of learning support and directed at young people who are NEET 
or unemployed. (Youth Offer Review) 

 

Options for Change  

1. New models of provision: District and sector-wide dispersed IAG model: 
develop a district-wide IAG service which supports other providers, as well as the 
Council, to provide IAG at a time and place convenient for young people to 
access (recognising that many organisations already do this informally as part of 
their provision). Move away from having just two dedicated drop in places to 
having a wider range of places where young people can drop in (like the help I 
am lost card). This would enable:  

• More outreach work to be done – take IAG support to existing provision.  

• Enable more pro-active sharing of information – focus on informing other 
organisations and providers.  

• Horizon scanning - identifying what young people want  

Page 11



  

• Increase use of social media - recognising the changes in youth 
behaviour for accessing IAG  

2. Changes to commissioning: Ensure all Council funded provision (whether in 
house or commissioned) provide a base level of IAG as a core part of their work 
– formally recognising the informal activity undertaken, and introduce a 
requirement to be up to date and collaborative.  

3. Increased partnership working: Explore options to undertake further 
partnership work (e.g. Prospects “What if I….”)  

Recommendations:  

� That IT solutions and technological responses are explored and maximised  

� That Information, Advice and Guidance work is delivered using the ‘dispersed’ 
model set out above and embedded into all youth work provision in the District 

 

2. Voice and Influence  
This encompasses: 

• Influencing how provision is run: planning, governance, recruitment of staff 

• Participating in decision making bodies and influencing local and national 
government 

• Raising issues and campaigning on issues  

 

What does it look like now? 

• The Youth Offer Review recognised significant work needs to be undertaken to 
increases and improve youth voice.  

• There is some youth voice provision but it is not co-ordinated or consistent. 
Opportunities for young people to feed in to existing ‘systems’ are difficult and 
sometimes too bureaucratic for them. Existing provision is not necessarily 
representative of all young people in the District. There are VCS forums that exist 
and are keen to link up to decision making processes, but there is no effective 
mechanism for doing so. 

• There are pockets of consultation undertaken but not consistently and is not 
necessarily young person friendly. It is sometimes adult consultation with young 
people invited, rather than being tailored. Opportunities to be involved are not 
always well communicated; it is not always clear what is being asked, why it is 
being asked, what difference it can make and what the impact has been.   

• Many organisations involve young people to some extent in the running of the 
organisation (governance, planning internal consultation, advisory committees).  

• Organisations have forums that enable young people to discuss issues relevant 
to them but there are not necessarily opportunities for these voices to be heard 
outside the organisation.  

• There is some involvement by young people in recruitment of staff but this is not 
consistent or across all provision.  

• There are some good practice models of local young people and Area Committee 
Grant Giving Groups working together, e.g. YOF grants  

• Youth service reports take young people to Area Committees and other 
meetings. It is much less common for other (non-Youth Service) groups of young 
people to be present at Area Committees.  

 

Page 12



  

What do we know from young people? 

There is a need for a well resourced, central youth voice vehicle or mechanism such 
as a youth council or similar to allow young people to be involved at a strategic level 
in the development of the youth voice offer. Young people should also be involved in 
the monitoring and evaluation of provision, delivery of training for staff. As well as 
this be supported to volunteer generally in the running of the youth projects they 
attend and individual projects should make sure they listen to young people about 
the services they offer. 

Young People identified that the chance to have their voices heard was an important 
element of the Youth Offer.  
 

Options for Change  

1. Adapt consultation processes to make them more young people friendly: 
Adapt language and approach to be more accommodating to young people. This 
includes reflecting on language used and how accessible existing consultation 
mechanisms are to young people.  Consultation needs to be planned and 
invested in and appropriate for young people. This may involve social media, 
consultation in young people friendly environments, or going to where young 
people already are. 

2. Co-ordination and enhancing existing opportunities: Link up what is already 
there – greater impact could be achieved by existing activities if they were better 
joined up. 

3. New opportunities for engagement: Create opportunities for engagement that 
are meaningful, are achievable, have feedback and engage YP in what they can 
do.  

4. Nurture new and emerging youth voice opportunities and groups: Some 
recent opportunities that young people have taken part in include: 

• December 2015 - 60 young people took part in a consultation with the 
members of the Children’s Trust Board in identifying initial priorities for the 
new District Children and Young People’s Plan.  

• February 2016 - 120 young people took part in the Youth Sector Partnership 
run Youth Voice Event looking at the priorities for the District Plan, the 
Children’s Trust next steps and the Universal Safeguarding Board Anti 
Bullying survey.  

• February 2016 - 70 young people from across the Youth Sector have taken 
part in the first ever visit by the Home Office Select Affairs Committee to add 
their voice to the enquiry into the Prevent Policy.    

• March 2016 - the Children’s Commissioner for England visited the District and 
undertook a series of visits to speak to young people living in Children’s 
Homes, using Homeless Projects, young people on Supported and 
Independent Housing Pathways, Children in Care and Youth Provisions and 
Information Service Users. This 2 day visit enabled young people who would 
not have routinely engaged with youth voice style events to be heard and 
influence directly those who have influence on National Youth Policy. 

5. Social media: Greater use of social media to engage with young people. Could 
link with universities to offer student placements to develop social media, apps 
and other initiatives to support youth voice.  

6. Commissioning requirement: All commissioning/commissioned services should 
have participation expectations  

Page 13



  

7. Quality improvement: Encourage organisations  to reach/develop a Voice and 
Influence Quality Mark 

8. Area Committees and other Council Committees: To ensure that when there 
are issues relating to young people, that opportunity is given for young people’s 
voices to be heard.   

Recommendations  

� Build on the existing youth voice work and look to ensure pathways that enable 
this to become more joined up across the District.   

� Develop a mechanism for sharing good practice and create opportunities for 
Youth Voice to be embedded into youth work practice across all sectors 

 

3. Open Access  

This incorporates any activity that is open to any young person in the District. Whilst 
this activity may be aimed at particular communities of geography, identity or 
interest, open access provision is not exclusively for young people from that 
community. This could include: 

• Provision by faith groups that is open to young peoples who don’t hold that 
faith 

• Provision by a disability group that is also open to non-disabled young people 

• Provision by uniformed organisations 

• Sports clubs 

• Youth clubs serving a particular place 

 

What does it look like now? 

• There is a relatively strong provision of open access  

• There are perceived and actual  barriers to access including cost, transport 
and safety 

• Some vulnerable groups face particular challenges accessing provision.  

• There are some gaps in provision and some duplication.  

• There is a wide range of providers Faith, VCS, Council  

• There is a need for more/better understanding of what different VCS and Faith 
organisations can/    
      do offer 

• Open access is supported by small amounts of grant funding  

• Varying ability to provide for additional support needs 

 

What do we know from young people and the Youth Offer Review 

• Overall young people are satisfied with the activities and support they are 
receiving and feel they have sufficient access to both. The most important 
areas of support to young people are personal and social development, 
activities and mixing and learning potential. Young people place substantially 
higher importance on the area of learning development than youth projects 
across Bradford. 

• The Youth Offer Review young people’s steering group was in favour of a 
greater focus on the vulnerable groups that have been identified as 

Page 14



  

underserved, funded by moving some resources away from general open 
access provision 

• Provision of local focused projects in specific communities should be used to 
overcome the barriers to specific BME groups created by safety concerns and 
the need/desire to stay within your own community. In the long term steps 
should be taken to promote community cohesion 

• The most important type of activity to young people was “leisure activities not 
including sports” followed by “sports”, “socialising with other young people” 
and “music” which were all broadly comparable. Young people believed they 
did not have enough access to “outdoor pursuits” and “workshops for groups” 
but this was only slight. 

• Young people are happy to access youth provision in a variety of settings with 
open access youth specific settings being slightly more popular than others. 

• Barriers to accessing provision are, cost of entry, cost of travel, safety 
concerns relating to the provision, concerns that staff would not understand 
your needs, or ensuring the environment was safe. These barriers applied to 
all young people groups but were more strongly pronounced for vulnerable 
groups. Safety concerns were more strongly pronounced for BME groups 
some of whom also highlighted not wanting to travel out of your own 
area/community after dark to access provision because of safety concerns. 

• There were also additional barriers in relation to provision not meeting specific 
needs relating to specific vulnerable group categories (eg lack of personal 
care for young people with disabilities). Some BME group highlighted the 
need for culturally specific provision, but this is thought to be well met 

• Asian/Asian British young people felt they were less well served with access 
to activities when compared to their peers. It is thought that community 
cohesion and safety issues appear to be a notable factor that affects the 
experiences and access to activities of Asian, Central and Eastern European 
and Roma groups of young people. Understandably these likely issues are 
likely to concentrate in Bradford West, which has the highest proportion of 
Asian heritage residents.  

 

Options for Change  

1. Reconfiguration of provision: 

a. The Council could work more closely with VCS and Faith providers to 
ensure consistent coverage and lack of duplication of open access 
opportunities 

b. Supporting local people to become volunteers in open access provision 
and take over the provision, enabling staffing resources to be prioritized on 
capacity building, outreach and addressing barriers.  

c. Develop a collaborative/partnership approach – jointly planning provision 
and developing good practice together and to ensure open access activity 
is inclusive and open to all.  

2. Collaborative work to seek resources and use existing resources more 
effectively.  

a. Joint work undertaken to bring in external funding to support open access 
provision.  

b. Increased sharing of existing resources (e.g. learning opportunities, 
facilities)  

3. Innovative ideas to use resources more effectively.  

Page 15



  

a. For example: offer free leisure activities and have IAG outreach provision 
available  

4. Develop common standards/outcomes for open access provision 

 

Recommendations  

� Build on the existing mixed delivery model for open access provision which is 
part-funded by the local authority, and develop the Council’s and the voluntary, 
community and faith sectors’ delivery to agreed outcomes that align with the 
Youth Offer and guidance for services that improve young people’s health, well-
being and learning potential.  

 

4. Targeted Provision 

Targeted provision will usually be exclusively for people who fit certain criteria or 
where there is an expectation that a certain proportion of participants meet such 
criteria. This will often be provision that is issue or agenda driven and activity that is 
prioritized by particular funders.  

What does it look like now? 

• There are some good elements, which can be seen to deliver  

• Current provision is generally based on historical arrangements and therefore 
may not always meet current needs. There is no clear system for 
refreshing/reviewing if the offer is still “sufficient”   

• Targeted provision is generally funding and agenda driven and therefore less 
flexible. Where funded by grants there is often a greater element of flexibility. 

• There is, in general, not a lot of innovation – although there are some emerging 
models  

• There is a lack of clarity as to what is defined as targeted and why particular 
groups are targeted. Not clear what groups are defined as targeted groups / 
different definitions in the sector 

• Targeted work is not always tied into the bigger picture 
 

What do we know from young people and the Youth Offer Review 

Young people place least importance on the area of aspiration and resilience and 
substantially less than projects in the area and adults who completed the stakeholder 
survey. However the nature of this category means that support in this area is less 
likely to be desired than other areas, but may still be needed.  
 

Options for Change  

1. Develop new flexible and responsive delivery models within commissioned 
services 

a. Innovation partnerships – working together to achieve something 

b. Social investment could be considered/explored (social investment bonds)  

c. Targeted money could be ‘seed’ money with defined outcomes requiring 
other funding to support delivery (in kind and other grants) 

2. Review and redefine which groups are ‘targeted’ - this needs a process for 
identifying changes to need/targeted groups and being able to adapt to change 
and emerging needs 

Page 16



  

3. Reduce duplication and co-ordinate activity:  

a. Need to consider who else is doing what to reduce/ensure no duplication 

b. Where young people already have key workers (some statutorily) i.e. LAC 
could we reduce the other professionals working with these groups (i.e. 
youth workers, NEET workers)  

4. Ensure better support to young people to enable access to targeted 
provision/universal provision. This includes more promotion to targeted groups 
of the offer available in open access provision and including actively breaking 
down perceived and real barriers to access for some young people.   

Recommendations  

� To ensure innovation is supported and developed 

� To consider, through commissioning, to allocating small amounts of funding to 
groups where there are opportunities for additionality and increased opportunities 
to access other funding 

 

5. Active citizens and young people’s contribution to community 
life 

 

What does it look like now? 

• Pockets of good practice: There are some pockets of good practice (e.g. the 
allocation of YOF grants by Area Committees, Play partnerships involving the 
community) but there is no consistent approach.  

• Young people’s volunteering opportunities: Young people do volunteer 
already, but there are not necessarily ways to ensure progress, support them to 
the next steps or ensure the quality of the opportunities.  

• National schemes and award programmes: NCS is available in the District, but 
this is only one model and will not be suitable for everyone. It is unclear how 
effectively NCS reaches a wide variety of different young people. Some 
citizenship opportunities are available as part of award schemes (e.g. DofE and 
uniformed organisations’ schemes) but completing the award can be the main 
motivating factor.   

• “Enforced citizenship”: Some activity has a community benefit but is 
undertaken as a result of a sanction, judicial process or other enforced process, 
e.g. reparation work, Restorative Justice work  

• Missed opportunities: The private sector is not active in initiating opportunities 

• Insularity: Opportunities and activities don’t always look beyond the immediate 
boundaries or broaden young people’s  horizons beyond Bradford 

• Focus of activities: Sometimes active citizenship activities are focused on those 
who are not performing well – need to balance this with supporting and engaging 
those who are high performers 

• Adult led: Much of the activity is adult led or directed. Adults also can be 
perceived as providing too much for young people, rather than encouraging and 
facilitating young people to devise their own solutions. Some practitioners have 
forgotten the “bread and butter” of youth work and “do too much” for young 
people rather than facilitating young person led action.  

• Faith based action: Faith groups have a strong ethos in activities that make a 
difference within a community and would be keen for young people to take a 
more active role in identifying opportunities.  

Page 17



  

• Funding: Currently very little active citizenship work is explicitly funded by the 
Council, although some funded activity will contribute to developing young people 
as active citizens.  

What do we know from young people and the Youth Offer Review 

• Volunteering was relatively low on young people’s priorities.  

Options for Change  

1) Developing pride in the city and other parts of the District. 

a) Work could be undertaken to develop pride in Bradford and promoting the 
positives of living in Bradford District. This could include work around the City 
Park and other places where young people meet. 

b) By developing and maintaining contact with young people, including those 
who move out of the area, the achievement of Bradford District’s young 
people can be celebrated. In the future these young people may be in a 
position to support Bradford’s communities.  

2) Greater expectations of young people to play a role as an active citizen 

a) There should be a greater expectation that young people take a role as an 
active citizen and develop their own solutions. “The offer” currently doesn’t 
expect enough of young people. 

b) Back to basics youth work – only doing for young people what they cannot do 
for themselves  

c) Young people should be encouraged to generate funding themselves to 
support things they want to do. 

d) Rather than running activities for young people, a more facilitative approach 
should be taken which rewarded giving and taking independent action.  

e) A greater emphasis on encouraging informal action like putting older people’s 
bins out.  

f) Celebrate active citizenship - support young people in understanding the 
impact of small acts of kindness/citizenship 

g) Sessions could have some time allocated when there is “consideration of 
others” – instilling this in to young people’s thoughts. 

h) Empowering young people to make ‘safe’ decisions when taking active 
citizenship roles, thereby building young people’s resilience. 

3) Funding and financing:  

a) The Council should place more emphasis on active citizenship within funding 
arrangements for all young people’s services. 

b) Encourage private companies to invest in young people in local areas where 
they are based. 

c) Encouraging local “giving” – create a community fund for young people. 

4) Co-production and partnership: Focus on how young people and services can 
work together to achieve things in communities; learn how to build crowd support 
for ideas and influence people and build relationships.  

5) Linking into faith groups and multi faith activities: ensuring these activities 
are visible and open offers to young people to participate. We need to learn from 
good practice e.g. Mosques/Madrassahs who are actively promoting active 
citizenship. 

Page 18



  

6) Increase networking and sharing of resources: to ensure that opportunities 
and ideas are shared and that young people have access to a wide range of 
resources.  

7) De-specialising and de-mystifying how to engage young people – encourage 
all providers of active citizenship opportunities to consider how they can involve 
young people 

Recommendations:  

� Seizing opportunities that challenge young people to take social action 

� Re-focus youth work practitioners towards ownership and towards young people 
being “creators not consumers” 

� Influence and shape provision to develop opportunities for active engagement  

� Developing initiatives and projects that are delivered by cross sector 
communities, VCS and the Council 

 

Next Steps 

The Youth Offer Working Group will continue to meet to oversee the implementation 
of the proposals and recommendations contained in this report. 

 

Youth Offer Working Group 

Heather Wilson (Chair), Commissioner (Youth Provisions), CBMDC 

Jonathan Hayes, Keighley Area Co-ordinator, CBMDC; Mick Charlton, Bradford 
South Area Co-ordinator, CBMDC; Peter Horner, Strategy Development Officer, 
Young Lives Bradford; Insp. Jonathan Pickles, West Yorkshire Police; Anna 
Shepherd, Development Manager, JAMES; Leanne Ashworth, Senior Manager, 
YMCA; Nasim Qureshi, Chief Executive, Inspired Neighbourhoods CIC; Steve 
Grasham, Children & Young People’s Advisor, Diocese of West Yorkshire & the 
Dales 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report of the Director of Children’s Services to the 
meeting of the Children’s Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee to be held on 12th April 2016 

 
 

            BI 
Subject:   
 
School Capital Funding Announcement and School Expansion Programme 2016-
2017 
 
 

Summary statement: 
 
This report details the recent school funding announcements from the Education 
Funding Agency (EFA) and also details the school expansion projects the Authority 
is currently undertaking. 
 

Michael Jameson 
Strategic Director Children’s Services 

Portfolio:   
 
Education Skills and Culture 
 

Report Contact: Terry Davis,  
Interim Assistant Director  
Client Services 
Phone: (01274) 437170 
E-mail: terry.davis@bradford.gov.uk 

  
Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
 
Children’s Services 

  

Page 21

Agenda Item 6/



 

1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report details the recent school funding announcements from the Education 

Funding Agency (EFA) and also details the school expansion projects the Authority 
is currently undertaking. 

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.2  Schools Capital Maintenance Grant and Devolved Formula Capital allocations 

were announced by the EFA on the 12th February 2016 for all Authorities. These 
allocations were both stated as being provisional.   

 
2.1  On the 18th March the EFA announced the level of Basic Need funding allocated 

for Bradford in 2018-2019.  Basic Need funding is the money the EFA allocates to 
Local Authorities to use for School expansion projects so the Authority can fulfill its 
duty to make sure there are enough school places for children in the local area. 

 
 

3. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 
 
3.1.1 Schools Capital Maintenance Grant Allocations 

 
3.2 Since 2008 the Schools Capital Maintenance Grant (CMG) made to the Authority 

has been as follows: 
 

Table 1: Schools Capital Maintenance Grant 

  

Year DfE CMG Allocation Annual % Change 

2008-09 £5,392,740   

2009-10 £5,818,955 7.9% 

2010-11 £5,818,955 0.0% 

2011-12 £7,884,044 35.5% 

2012-13 £6,351,482 -19.4% 

2013-14 £6,137,430 -3.4% 

2014-15 £5,614,808 -8.5% 

2015-16 £5,877,114 4.7% 

2016-17 £5,856,472 -0.4% 

Total     

 
3.3 The Schools Capital Maintenance Grant is stated to be provisional and will be fully 

ratified by the EFA after March 2016. It has also been stated that the allocations for 
2017-18 are expected to be set at the same level subject to adjustment for Schools 
which become Academies. Whilst the allocation for 2016 -17 is currently stated to 
be provisional the Authority’s Building & Technical Services Team have been asked 
to identify the next batch of school building improvement projects which the money 
can be allocated to and provisionally 34 projects have been identified which include 
new boilers, roof renewals and re-wires.  

 

Page 22



 

3.4   School Devolved Formula Capital (DFC) 
 

3.4.1 In addition to the Schools Capital Maintenance Grant, Schools also receive a DFC 
allocation. This money is allocated to the Authority who pass the amounts on to 
individual Schools once they put forward an appropriate maintenance/improvement 
project.  

 
3.5   Table 2: Annual School Devolved Formula Grant 

 

Year School DFC Allocation Annual % Change 

2008-09 £8,282,303   

2009-10 £8,116,273 -2.0% 

2010-11 £7,531,530 -7.2% 

2011-12 £1,567,639 -79.2% 

2012-13 £1,488,626 -5.0% 

2013-14 £1,453,034 -2.4% 

2014-15 £1,317,713 -9.3% 

2015-16 £1,310,363 -0.6% 

2016-17 £1,315,559 4.0% 

      

 
3.5.1 DFC allocations are also stated to be provisional and will be confirmed after March 

2016.  
 
3.6   Basic Need Funding Allocation 
 
3.6.1 In this year’s announcement the Authority has been allocated £23,839,673 for 

2018-2019. 
 
3.7   Table 3: Basic Need Funding 

 

Year Basic Need Allocation Annual % Change 

2010-11 £11,009,000   

2011-12 £17,729,194 61.0% 

2012-13 £19,611,561 10.6% 

2013-14 £7,644,753 -61.0% 

2014-15 £7,644,753 0.0% 

2015-16 £9,223,125 20.6% 

2016-17 £9,684,281 5.0% 

2017-18 £727,005 -92.5% 

2018-19 £23,839,673  3,179% 
 

3.7.1 The allocation is significantly higher than last year and compares favourably with 
other West Yorkshire Authorities as seen in the table below. 

 
 
3.7.2 Table 4: West Yorkshire Basic Need Funding 

Page 23



 

 

LA Name Total Basic Need allocations for 2018-19 

Bradford 23,839,673 

Calderdale 8,723,291 

Kirklees 7,975,997 

Leeds 20,994,359 

Wakefield 2,940,836 

 
 

4. RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
 
4.1  The Authority requires a Basic Need allocation that will provide sufficient funds to 

allow it to continue to expand schools to deal with the forecast increase in pupil 
numbers across the District. 

 
5. LEGAL APPRAISAL 
 

There are no legal issues arising from this report.   
 
6. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

None 
 
6.1   EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 
 

None 
 
6.2   SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 

All school improvement projects and school expansion schemes are carried out to 
current building standards.  Energy efficient boilers, LED lighting and high levels of 
insulation are used wherever possible. 

 
6.3   GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 
 

None. 
 
6.4   COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 

None. 
 
6.5   HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 
 

None. 
 
6.6   TRADE UNION IMPLICATIONS 
 

Page 24



 

None.   
 
6.7   WARD IMPLICATIONS 
 

Appendix 1 shows the list of schools expansions which are being undertaken in 
different wards across the District. 

 
7. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 
 

None. 
 
8. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

That the Committee notes the report. 
 
9. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1 shows the current list of school expansion schemes agreed by the 
Executive.  

 
10. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

Children’s Services Overview & Scrutiny Committee held on 8th June 2015 
regarding backlog maintenance. 

 
Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 17th March 2015 
regarding EFA capital announcements and the school capital investment 
programme 

 
 

Page 25



 

 

Appendix 1: School Expansion Programme 
 
The following school expansion projects are being project managed by the Education 
Client Services Team.  The projects are delivered in a number of stages to minimise the 
impact on schools and to fit with the funding allocations the Authority is given.   
 
The list below updates the status of schemes reported to this Committee in April 2015. 
 

SCHOOL STAGE CURRENT STATUS DESCRIPTION 

Cavendish Primary Stage 3 Complete Expansion 

Crossley Hall Primary Stage 3 Complete Expansion 

Cullingworth Primary Stage 1 Complete Expansion 

Bradford Forster Secondary 
Academy 

Complete 
project 

Complete New School 

High Crags Primary Stage 3 Complete Expansion 

Idle C of E Primary Stage 1 External works to 
complete 

Expansion 

Eldwick Primary Stage 2 Complete Expansion 

Haworth Primary Stage 2 Complete Expansion 

Ingrow Primary Stage 2 Complete Expansion 

St James Primary Stage 4 Complete Expansion 

Victoria Primary Stage 2 Complete Expansion 

Wycliffe Primary Stage 2 Complete Expansion 

Barkerend Primary Stage 1 Design Development Expansion 

Lidget Green Primary Stage 1 Design Development Expansion 

Stocks Lane Primary Stage 1 Design Development Expansion 

Eldwick Primary  Stage 3 In Construction Expansion 

Haworth Primary  Stage 3 In Construction Expansion 

Ingrow Primary  Stage 3 In Construction Expansion 

St James Primary  Stage 5 Complete Expansion 

Victoria Primary  Stage 3 Complete Expansion 

Wycliffe Primary  Stage 3 In Construction Expansion 

Parklands Primary Stage 1 Design Development Expansion 

 
As previously reported Bradford Forster Secondary Academy and Idle were in excess of 
£2million in value.  Of the remaining schemes Barkerend will exceed £2million in value.  
 
For some schemes whilst the individual stages of expansion will be less than £2million  
over a number of stages the total cost may be in excess of this. Both Eldwick and St 
James have cost over £2million.  

Page 26



 

 

Report of the Deputy Director of Education, 
Employment and Skills to the meeting of Children’s 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 12 April 2016. 
 
 

          BJ 
Subject:   
 
Equality Action Plan Progress Report 
 

Summary statement: 
 
This report provides an annual progress update on the Council’s Equality Action Plan 
(published in 2013), as the Council’s means of meeting its statutory duties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Judith Kirk 
Deputy Director Education, 
Employment and Skills 

Portfolio:   
 
Education, Skills and Culture 
 

Report Contact: Alina Khan 
Phone: (01274) 439384 
E-mail: alina.khan@bradford.gov.uk 

Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
 
Children’s Services 

 
 

Page 27

Agenda Item 7/



 

1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report provides an annual progress update on the Council’s Equality Action 

Plan (2012-2016), which has been published as the Council’s means of meeting its 
statutory duties. 
 

1.2  On 19th March 2015 Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee, received a 
report on progress of the plan and resolved that the Equality Action Plan be 
considered by each of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees which focus 
specifically on areas that are within their remit on a regular basis. 

 
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 In order to meet the Public Sector Equality Duty and as a means of good practice, 

Bradford Council committed to ten equality objectives in 2012.  These are 
underpinned by detailed actions, responsibilities and timelines in the Council’s 
Equality Action Plan. These are: 

 
1. Data and Analysis - Improving our equality monitoring data and analysis 
2. Embedding Equalities - Ensuring equality has been integrated into the work of 

departments across the authority and the Council is able to demonstrate 
compliance with the Equality Duty 

3. Access to Information - Our services and information are accessible and do not 
discriminate 

4. Engagement - Our communities, partners and stakeholders are empowered to 
influence the way our services are provided 

5. Workforce - To work towards a Council workforce that reflects our communities 
6. Inequalities in Education - Narrow the gaps in educational achievement 
7. Inequalities in Employment and Skills - To promote economic wellbeing, reduce 

worklessness and raise skills 
8. Inequalities in Housing - Improve quality and quantity of housing provision so that it 

meets specific needs for people with protected characteristics 
9. Inequalities in Health and Social Care - Reduce the impact of health and social care 

inequalities in the District through partnership working 
10. Foster Good Relations - Fostering good relations by promoting greater awareness 

and understanding between our communities. 
 

Annual progress against those objectives is presented through the annual reports 
available on the Bradford Council website.  Work is also underway to ensure new 
objectives are in place by June 2016. 
http://www.bradford.gov.uk/bmdc/government_politics_and_public_administration/e
quality_and_diversity/public_sector_equality_duty.htm  

 
 
3. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
3.1 There are on-going challenges facing schools from new arrivals, in the context of 

school places and language development: 
 The number of schools places that become available changes on a daily basis. In 

Page 28



 

addition many of these places will be in the wrong area or the wrong year groups for 
those children wanting/needing places. 
Admissions receive requests for approximately 7000 In Year transfers annually 
(approx. 40 per school day), 70% of which are Primary (4,900). Of the 7000 
applications 38% require a school place because they are new or returning to 
Bradford whilst 19% have moved house within Bradford and cannot access their 
current school.  

3.2 There are now 6 Centres of Good Practice (hubs) to build capacity in successful 
schools to support other schools in managing the provision for New Arrivals, 
including support for EAL pupils (language support). 

3.3 The objective of addressing inequalities in education is to narrow the gaps in 
educational achievement 
Educational achievement is supported through the Raising Achievement Strategy 
which has been superseded by the Education Improvement Strategy. One of the 
key priorities of this strategy is to secure continuity of education provision for mobile 
groups and individuals. Revised milestones are in place to ensure that we deliver 
actions that through working with partners will help us improve in-year transition 
between schools, revise and disseminate the New Arrival Programme and 
undertake a review of support for ethnic minority and new arrival service.  Four key 
areas in the Education Improvement Strategy are: 
1. Further improving the quality of leadership, including governance, across all  

school and settings 
2. Improving school readiness and end of Early Years outcomes 
3. Improving teaching and learning and raising levels of literacy across all phases 
4. Raising attainment of underperforming groups and narrowing the attainment 

gap. 
It is too early to comment on any specific trends, and too early to measure impact of 
this strategy.  

3.4 A number of partnerships have also been developed and include the Bradford 
Partnership (secondary), Bradford Primary Improvement Partnership, District 
Achievement Partnership, The Consortium of Nursery Schools, 14 to 19 Partnership 
and the Catholic Schools' Partnership.  
 

 

4. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 
 
4.1  Oversight of the Equalities Action Plan is undertaken by Policy Programmes and 

Change which is funded from within existing budgets. Implementing its delivery is 
carried out by services within their approved budgets. 

 
5. RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
 

Risk Management and Governance are overseen by Corporate Management Team 
supported by the Corporate Equalities Group of senior officers. 

 
6. LEGAL APPRAISAL 
 
6.1 The Council published its equality objectives in June 2012, in order to comply with 

its duties under the Equality Act 2010 (Specific Duties) Regulations 2011. Those 

Page 29



 

Regulations also require the Council to publish information demonstrating it 
compliance with the Public Sector Equality Duty, at least on an annual basis, and 
this will be undertaken by continually updating information held on the Council 
website, and carrying out an annual review of content. The address of the Equality 
and Diversity webpage is 
http://www.bradford.gov.uk/bmdc/government_politics_and_public_administration/e
quality_and_diversity The Equality Action Plan gives further information about the 
Council's equality objectives and states how it is expected that those objectives will 
be achieved. It goes beyond the requirements of the equalities legislation, as set 
out earlier in this report. 
 

6.2  Legal Services will continue to provide advice to all Council services regarding the 
Council’s obligations under the equalities legislation. 

 
7. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 
 The Equality Action Plan will contribute directly to the Council's priorities outlined in 

the Council’s Corporate Plan and Community Strategy. The Equality Governance 
Framework indicates the responsibilities for monitoring the equality objectives. 
 

7.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 

None 
 
7.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 
 None  
 
7.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 There are no specific community safety implications of this report. 
 
7.5 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 
 

Equalities legislation and the action plan contain aspects which overlap with Human 
Rights Act. 
 

7.6 TRADE UNION 
None   

 
7.7 WARD IMPLICATIONS 
 

Whilst this report relates to equalities in terms of protected characteristics, ward 
plans and officer teams, and individual parts of the plan, work to address Equality 
issues as they affect citizens in different wards and areas of the District. 

 
8. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 
 

None 

Page 30



 

 
 
9. OPTIONS 
 None 
 
 
10. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10.1  That the Committee considers what it would like to put in the work programme for 

the next municipal year on the Equality Action Plan. 
 
 
11. APPENDICES 
 None 
 
 
12. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
12.1 Equality Action Plan 2012-2016 Progress report – January 2016 
 
12.2 Equality Impact Plan 2013 (original document) Appendix 2  
 
 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report of the Chair to the meeting of the Children’s 
Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee to be held 
on Tuesday 12 April 2016. 
 
 
 

Subject:            BK 
 
Scrutiny of Home Educated Children – Terms of Reference 
 
 

Summary statement: 
 
This report presents a proposed Terms of Reference for a Scrutiny of Home 
Educated Children, with a view to its adoption by the Committee. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Cllr Malcolm Sykes 
Committee Chair 

Portfolio:   
 
Children and Young People’s Services 
 

Report Contact:  Licia Woodhead 
Phone: (01274) 432119 
E-mail: licia.woodhead@bradford.gov.uk 

 Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
 
Children’s Services 
 
 

 
 

Page 33

Agenda Item 8/



 

1. SUMMARY 
 

This report presents a proposed Terms of Reference for a Scrutiny of Home 
Educated Children, with a view to its adoption by the Committee. 

 

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 

As part of its 2012-13 work programme, the Committee agreed to undertake a 
scrutiny of Educational Attainment in the Bradford District. 

 
The proposed Terms of Reference for a scrutiny of Home Educated Children is 
attached as Appendix 1 and sets out the objectives of the scrutiny and a list of 
interested parties. 

 
 
3. OPTIONS 
 

The Committee to adopt the Terms of Reference as proposed or with any 
 amendments they wish to make. 

 
 
4. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

That the Committee adopts or amends the proposed Terms or Reference as 
appropriate. 

 
 
5. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 
 

None.   
 
6. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1 – Draft Terms of Reference for a Scrutiny of Home Educated Children 
 

Page 34



 

CHILDREN’S SERVICES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Scrutiny of Home Educated Children in the Bradford 
District 

 

Draft Terms of Reference 
 

See Part 3E paragraphs 2.1-2.11 of the Council Constitution 
 

 
1. Background 
 
 
In December 2015 Sir Michael Wilshaw, Head of Ofsted warned the safety 
and well-being of hundreds of children could be at risk by their education in 
unregistered schools illegally operating in several parts of England. 
 
Earlier this year, a senior delegation from Ofsted met with Council officers and 
members of the Executive.  Ofsted raised some legitimate concerns, but also 
made some general statements regarding home educated children in the 
District. 
 
At its meeting on 22 March 2016 the Council resolved to: 
 
“Ask the Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee to ensure that 
a comprehensive and robust review of the Council’s approach to elective 
home education is carried out over the next six months in which the 
safeguarding of children is central”. 
 
 
2. Key Lines of Enquiry 
 
 
The key lines of enquiry for this scrutiny review are as follows: 
 

• An understanding of the Council’s approach to identifying children not 
registered at school 
 

• How does the Council minimise the risk of children missing education 
 

• Understanding why some parents / carers choose home education 
 

• How the Council can ensure the safeguarding  of children outside the 
“regular” school system 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 35



 

3.  Methodology 
 
 
The Committee will receive and consider a variety of evidence/ information 
provided by a range of interested parties.  The Committee may adopt one or 
more of the following methods to collect evidence/ information: 
 

• Request specific briefing materials and/or reports from officers of the 
Council; 

 

• Invite written evidence from other interested parties; 
 

• Commission specific research and consider any subsequent findings; 
 

• Hold open meetings at which members of the public or interested 
organisations can present their views and evidence; 

 

• Hold “Committee hearings” i.e. meetings in public, with specific interested 
parties invited to give a brief presentation (with a previously submitted 
written submission), followed by questioning by the Committee; 

 
 
4.  List of Interested Parties 
 
An indicative list of interested parties is provided below. This is not definitive 
or exclusive and can be developed as the scrutiny progresses. 
 

• Department for Education 

• Ofsted 

• Children’s Services Department 

• Private Tutors / schools 

• Teachers 

• Young People 

• Trade Unions 

• Parents 

• Governors 

• Portfolio Holder 

• Telegraph & Argus 
 
 
5.  Indicative Timetable 
 
Dates of meetings – to be arranged 
 

Page 36


	Agenda
	5 DELIVERING A NEW YOUTH OFFER FOR BRADFORD DISTRICT
	6 SCHOOL CAPITAL FUNDING ANNOUNCEMENT AND SCHOOL EXPANSION PROGRAMME 2016-2017
	7 EQUALITY ACTION PLAN PROGRESS REPORT
	8 SCRUTINY OF HOME SCHOOLING - DRAFT TERMS OF REFERENCE

